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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

CIVIL COMPLAINT
United States, )
. Y
Plaintiff, )
)
) .
vs. ) CASENO,
. N )
Breckenridge Plaza, Inc., and )
Morris Zelikovsky )
)
Defendants. )

Tlie United States of America al-legés:
1, This action is brought to enforce the Fajr Houéing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act
| of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988,. 42 U.8.C, §§ 3601

et seq., "

| 2. This Court hag jurisdi_ctim_l over this action pursuant to 28 U.8,C. §§ 1331 and 1345 and
420.8,C. § 3614, Veﬁue is proper under 28 U,8.C. § 1391(b) as the cluims alleged
herein aroge in the Eaétern District of Penngylvania,

3, Broeckentidge Plaza, Inc. owﬁs. the Bréckenridge Plaza Apartments, a ninety-one-unit

| apariment complex located at 495 Nutt Road, Phoenixville, Pennsylvanié. Bfeclcenridge

Plaza, Inc-. offers apartments iﬁ that complex for rent. Those apartments are dWell_ings

within the meaning of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3602(b),
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Breckenridge Plaza, Inc. is a Pennsylvanis corporation with its principal place of business
in Phoenixville, Pennsylvania. -

Defendant Motris Zelikovsky manages and operates Breckenridge Plaza Apartrents on

“ behalf of Breckenridge Plaza, Inc,

Breckenridge Plaza, Inc, has the right to direct and control Morris Zeliko‘}sky’s actions as
manager and operator of the Breckenridge Plaza Apartmerits.
Between October 1, 2009, and February 28, 2010, and while acting with the actual or
apparent authority of Breckenridge Plaza, Inc., Mortis Zelikovsky showed and offered for
rent apartments located in the Breckenridge Plaza Apartments,
On or about February 1, 2010, and while acting with the actual or app arent authotity of
Breckentidge Plaza, Inc., Rental Agent No, 1, an unidentified rental agent for
Breckenridge Plaza Inc., offered for rent apartments located in the Breckenridge Plaza
Apartments, |
On or about October 14, 2009, Morris Zeliko‘/sky, aeting on behalf of and as the agent of
Breckenridge Plaza Inc., developed and posted the following advertisement on the
internet website craigsiiss, brg:
“8740 / 2br ~ Winter Special - Downtown Close to Hospital
Reply to: breckplaza@verizon,net ‘
For a Limited Time only for credit worthy (must have credit score over 0650) for
SPECIAL. - This deal is for a maximum of two petsons. The two-bedroom
Teatures: 1) walking distance to great taverns and restaurants or boutiques [sic]
shops in downtown Phoenixville 2) off-street parking 3) w/w carpeting 40 central

air/heating 5) £/ maintenance on premises 6) FIOS or Comeast Cable teady, No
pots are allowed.”

10, Between October 19, 2009, and January 18, 2010, the Defendants'posted eight more

advertisements on the interpet website craigslist,org, each of which offered a

2



11,

12,

13.

14,
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discounted rental rate for a two-bedroom unit provided it would be cceupied by no more
than two perso.ns. _

On or about January 29, 2010, Morris Z.alikovsky, acting on behalf of and as the agent of
Breckenridge Plaza Inc., developed and p'o'sted‘ the foliowing advertisemeﬁt on the
internet website craigsiist, org:

“$740 / 2br - Downtown Close to Hospital (Phoenixville, PA)
Reply to: breckplaza@verizon.net _ :
Winter Special Price for Two Adulls with good credit score (over 660). Our
two bedroom features nice size bedrooms with wall closets, off-strect parking,
central air/heat, w/w/ carpeting, FIOIS or Comcast availability, £t maintenance
on premmises, laundry facility on site,”

* (emphasis added).

Renters with children are-more likely than renters without children to seek a rental u-ni;c to
be oceupied by more than two petsons,

In response to the Defendants’ October 14, 2009 advertisement, the Fair Housing

Council of Suburban Philadelphta (“FHCSP”), o non-for~profit organization that works to
eliminaie housing diserimination, conducted a_series of tests between October 2009 and
Mgi'ch 2011 to evaluate the Defendants’ compliance with the Fair Housing Act. That
testing cost, améng other things, time and financial resources. Testing is the simulation
of a housing transaction_ that compares résp onges given by housing providers to different
types of hbme%cekers to detei‘mine whether illegal discrimination is ogcurring, In
response to the Defendants’ oénduct, the FITCSP also paid for .an advertising campaign to

combat the effects of the Defendants’ conduct,

- During one test condueted by the FHCSP, Rental Agent No, 1 made statements indicating

that a dwelling unit at the Breekentidge Plaza Apartments was not available for rent fo 2
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20.
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single parent with a child for the same monthiy rent fél' which it would be available to a
married couble. |

On or about October 21, 2009, the FHCSP ﬁled a complaint with the United Stateé
Department 6f Hﬁusing and Urban Development (HUD) alleging that the Defendants
discriminated on the basis of famiiial status in vioiﬁtion of the Fair Housing Act,

As required by the Fair Housing Act, 42 U,S;C,. §§ 3610(a)and (b), the Secretai'y of
HUD conductéd an invesfigatidn of the FHCSP’s complaint, attempted conciliation
without success, and prepared a final investigative report, Based on the information
gathered in his inﬁstigaﬁon, the Sebretary, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3610(g), determined
that reasonable.cause exists to believe that illegal discriminatory housing practice.s had
oceurred, Therefore, on or about July 20,' 2011, the Secretary issued a Determination of
Reasonable Cause and Charge of Il).iscl—'imination pursuant to 42 U.8.C, § 3610(g),
charging the Defendants with discrimination on the basis of familial status,

On August 4, 2011, the Defendants elected to have the‘ claims asserted in HUD-’s Charge
of Diserimination resolved in a federal civil .acﬁon pursuant té 420U8.C.§ 3612(a),

On or about Angust 5, 2011, a HUD Adminisirative Law Judge issved a Notice of

-~ Election and terminated the administrative proceedings on the HUD complaint filed by

thé FHCSP,

Following the Notice of Election, the Secretary of HUD authorized the At:torney General
to commence a civil action, pursuant to 42 U,S.C, § 3612(0),

By the conduct set forth in patagraphs 5 through 14, abqve, Defendants Morris

Zelikovsky and Brockenridge Plaza, Tne.: _



21,

22.
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a .Refused to negotiate for the rental of, or otherwise made unavailable or denjed a
dwelling to a person on the basis of familial status, in violation of Section 804(a)
of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.8.C. § 3604(a);

b.  Discriminated in the terms, conditions, or privileges of rental of a dwelling
because of familial status, in violation of Section 804(b) of the Fair Housing Act,
42 US.C. § 3604(b); and |

¢ Made statements with fespect’ to the sale or rental of dwellings that indicate a

- preference, [imitation, dr discrimination based on familial status in violation of

Section 804(c) of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.8.C. § 3604(c).

The discriminatory actions of Defendants Bréoke'm‘idg;: Plaza, Inc, and Morris

Zelikovsky wete intentional, willful, and taken in disregard of the requirements of the

Fait Housing Act and the rights of the FI-ICSP and others,

FHCSP is an apgrieved person within the meaning the.meaning of 42 U8.C. § 3602(1),

and has suffered damages as a result of the Defendants’ discriminatory éoﬂduct as.

described abo{fe, including ii'ust_ration of mission and diversion of resources,

WHEREFORE, the United States prays that the court e_nter.an ORDER that:

Declares that the conduct of the Dét‘endants, as alleged herein, violates the Fair Housing

Act; |

Enjoins the Defendémts and their officers, eﬁiployees, agents, successors and all other

persons in active concert or participation with them, from further:
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a. Refusing to rent, after the making of a bona fide offer, or refusjng to negotiate for
the rental of, or otherwise make unavailable dr deny, a dwelling to any person |
because of familial status; |

B. Discriminating against any person in the terms, conditions, or privileges of rental
ofa dwelling because of familial status; |

C. Further making statements with respect to the sale or rental of dWellings that
indicate a preference, limitatiqﬁ, or discrimination based on familial status;

b. DiScrimiﬁatiné on the basis of familial status against any person in any aspect of
the rental of dwellings; and | | |

d. Failing or refusing to take such steps that may be necessary to 'preve_nf the
recutrence of any diécriminatory conduct in the futuré ahd to eliminate, to the
‘ex’cent practicable, the effects of the Defendants’ unlawful housing practices,

. | . Awards monetary da_mages, pursuant to 42 U,8.C, § 36'12(0)(3), to the Fair Housing

Council of Suburban Philadelphia,
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The United States further prays for such additional relief as the interests of justice may require.

Dated: _ 7 /ZK;2011

ZANE DAVID MEMEGER
United States” Attorney

United States Attorney’s Office
615 Chestnut Street, Suite 1250
Philadelphia, PA 19106

Phone: (215) 861-8200

Fax: (215) 861-8618

ERIC H. HOLDER, Jr,

HOMAS E. PEREZ,
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division
N

STEVEN H. ROSENBAU
Chief

AL
REBECCA B. BOND 6\
Deputy Chief
SEAN R. KEVENEY
Trial Attorney
Civil Rights Division
U.S. Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W,
Northwestern Building, 7th Floor
Washington, D.C. 20530
Ph: (202) 514-4838; Fax: (202) 514-1116
sean.r.keveney@usdoj.gov




